
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADDENDUM 3 

This addendum is to append to the 2022 Security Camera Project RFP, for 
Philipsburg Osceola Area School District.  

 
SECURITY CAMERA SYSTEM PROJECT 

ISSUED BY: Jodie Conklin, Technology Manager & 
Thomas Martin, Director of Finance 

 
PHILIPSBURG OSCEOLA AREA SCHOOL DISTRICT 

200 SHORT STREET 
PHILIPSBURG, PA 16866 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS 
 

The following questions have been posed by potential bidders and are presented below with the 
district’s answers.  

 
At the time of this addendum being posted, no further questions may be submitted in 

regards to the Security Camera Project. 
 
 

GENERAL QUESTIONS: 
 

1. There was commentary by the POASD staff that it would be acceptable to leave the 
four multi-sensor PTZ camera’s in the high school front parking lot if those cameras 
meet the RFP requirements. It is understood that the existing recorder in the box 
on the pole would be removed. Is this still acceptable? In order to make sure that 
the cameras meet the RFP requirements and compatibility, could you provide 
manufacturer and model? 
A. We have determined that the PTZ cameras in the parking lot are all Hikvision, and 
therefore will need to be replaced. 

2. Is there 110V power on the poles at the football field at the high school? 
A.       Yes, it should be 277 or higher. 

3. Are there any roof hatches at any of the buildings that need to be covered? 
A.      No. 

4. Are the vendors allowed to use conduit on the external of the buildings? 
A.       Yes 

5. Is the awarded vendor responsible for any cleaning of lenses on the camera’s?  and 
if so, what frequency is expected. 
A.      No. 

6. Is it safe to assume any changes (adding camera’s/coverage) from the awarded 
vendors design will result in a change order? 
A.      Yes. 

7. Is the awarded vendor responsible for any firmware/software updates to the 
camera system during the 5 year period? 
A.      Yes. 

8. Is the awarded vendor responsible in any way for manufacturer product 
shortages/delays that would affect the August 19th due date? 
A.      Yes. All efforts must be made by the vendor to meet the August 19th due date. We 

understand that product shortages and delays may happen, however, if these should 
arise and affect the expected completion date, a meeting must occur between the 
vendor and technology district staff, as well as, proper documentation provided 
proving the shortages and delays.  

9. Will the school be appointing a single point of contact as project manager for the 
installation and the sign off of the cameras being camera is installed? 
A.      Yes. If a bid is awarded, upon start of the project one of the technology staff will 

be appointed as project manager to sign off on all project related matter. 



10.  Will it be required to terminate the network cabling to a keystone jack at the 
camera (with patch cord), or will it be acceptable to terminate the cable with an 
RJ45 and plug it directly into the camera? 
A.       There is no preference, as long as it is neat and tidy and functional. 

11.  Who is responsible for providing patch cords and patch panels in the closets if 
needed?  
A.        The district will provide color coordinated patch cords and any necessary patch 
panels, in the closets only. Vendors are responsible for all patch cords for camera side. 

12.   Regarding the Addendum 1, under HS Questions, #1, Ubiquiti devices are 
generally not NDAA compliant, can you confirm that we are permitted to leave the 
existing point to point even though there is a possibility that the equipment may not 
be NDAA compliant? 
A.     We have confirmed that the Ubiquiti device is NDAA compliant, and therefore is 

able to be left and continued to be used. 
13.   Has the district procured a prevailing wage determination rate for the project? 

A.      No. Bidders are responsible for familiarizing themselves with local prevailing wage, 
and submit alternate pricing with the prevailing wage cost. 

14.  Is a bid, performance, and/or maintenance bond required?  
 A.     If a successful bidder is chosen, they will be required to acquire a performance 

bond. Bidders are not required to include these bonds in their proposals. 

15.  Will interior cameras require IR emitters? 
 A.     We require clear visibility in the dark, for both exterior and interior cameras. How 
this is accomplished is up to the vendors. 

16.  There was a question regarding the 5 year warranty/service contract to provide 
clarification of what the district wants for the 5 year contract. 
A.      The 5 year warranty is in regards to two pieces: 

• Manufacturer warranty: We would like a 5 year manufacturer warranty on all 
camera and components, which will provide coverage for any manufacture 
defects, repairs and replacements needed. 

• Service/support contract: We would like a 5 year support/service contract 
that consists of the following: 

o Firmware/software updates 
o Escalated support on any issues with camera connectivity and 

functionality 
o Support with software issues 
o Any damage or improper installation done by the vendor, that voids or 

forfeits manufacture warranty, the vendor will be responsible for 
replacing/repairing and all costs associated. 

Any reangling of cameras, reconfiguring, running or replacing damaged cabling (post-
installation and not including any damages done through improper installations, as noted 
in the service contract bullet points above), will be managed by the district technology 
staff. This is all after the project completion is checked and signed off on by the district 
project manager. 

 


